

VITA

SUMMARY

Background in higher education and library administration, research, faculty governance, curriculum development, distance learning, budgeting, accreditation, operations and facilities, applications of information science, networking, multimedia applications, video applications, archives, services to the handicapped, electronic information searching, book restoration, and standards compliance. Training and experience have developed special knowledge and skills in the areas of administration, budgeting, personnel management, strategic planning, assessment, evaluation, research, counseling, grant writing, and fund-raising.

EDUCATION

B.A. Faith Baptist Bible College, Ankeny, Iowa
Pre-Seminary, 1970

Th.M. Dallas Theological Seminary, Dallas, Texas
Church History, 1975

M.S.L.S. East Texas State University, Commerce, Texas
Library and Information Science, 1977

M.A. Texas Woman's University, Denton, Texas
Library and Information Science, 1988

Ed.D. Texas A & M-Commerce, Commerce, Texas
Educational Media and Technology, 1981

Graduate Harvard Graduate School of Education, ACRL/Harvard Leadership
Institute, 2000, Boston, Massachusetts

THESES

"Applicability of Microcomputer (USMARC AMC) Compatible Software on the
Archives of the LeTourneau Company, Longview, Texas," M.A.

"Balthasar Hubmaier," Th.M.

"An Investigation of the Application of Selected Management Techniques to
Public University Administration," Ed.D.

HONORS

Kappa Delta Pi, Uncommon Citizen Aware (Azusa Pacific University, 2005)

POSITIONS

Vice Provost for Graduate Programs and Research and Dean of the University
Libraries, and Professor, School of Education, Department of Advanced
Studies, Azusa Pacific University, 2008-

Vice Provost for Academic Affairs and Dean of the University Libraries, Azusa
Pacific University, 2006-08

Interim Dean of the School of Education and Behavioral Sciences and Dean of
the University Libraries, Azusa Pacific University, Azusa, CA 2005-06

Interim Dean of Haggard School of Theology and Dean of the University
Libraries, Azusa Pacific University, Azusa, CA 2004-2005

Dean of the University Libraries, Azusa Pacific University, 1998-2004

Dean of Academic Computer Services and University Librarian, Azusa Pacific University, 1996-98

Dean of Computer Services and University Librarian, Azusa Pacific University, Azusa, CA 1992-1996

Dean of the Library, Azusa Pacific University, Azusa, CA 1989-92

Director of the Margaret Estes Library and Longview Citizens Resources Center, LeTourneau University, Longview, Texas 1984-1989

Vice President, Golden Triangle Christian Academy, Garland, Texas 1981-1982

Cataloger, Walworth Harrison Public Library, Greenville, Texas 1978-1981

Director of Community Living Residence IV, Douglas County Mental Health/Mental Retardation Center, Dallas, Texas 1974-1978

Director of Hardin Dormitory, Buckner Baptist Children's Home, Mesquite, Texas 1971-1974

Other work included Owner/operator of 18 wheeler, Greenville, Texas, Clerk, United States Postal Service, Des Moines, Iowa, Salesman, Sears Roebuck, Bellevue, Nebraska, Orderly, Douglas County Hospital, Omaha, Nebraska

INSTITUTIONAL OFFICE

University Integrity Officer, 2008-

ACCREDITATION TEAM VISITS

Western Association of Schools and Colleges (8), Southern Association of Colleges & Schools (1), Middle States Commission of Colleges & Schools (1)

COURSES TAUGHT

Azusa Pacific University, Azusa, CA

LIB 500 School Library Media Management

LIB520 Organization and Cataloging of Learning Resources

LeTourneau University, Longview, Texas

BI 213 Introduction to Old Testament Literature

East Texas State University, Commerce, Texas

LIS 515 Cataloging

LIS 512 Library Reference

LIS 535 Multiethnic Materials

Texas Woman's University, Denton, Texas

LS 5403 Library Automation

CONSULTING

Westmont College, Santa Barbara, California

Concordia University, Irvine, California

Faith Baptist Bible College, Ankeny, Iowa

Greenville Independent School District, Greenville, Texas

GRANTS

Azusa Pacific University, Academic Internship and Research Council Grants
National Historical Publications & Records Commission University Archives

- PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS** Statewide California Electronic Library Consortium (Past Executive Committee and Board Chair), LINK+ (Executive Committee and Past Chair), American Library Association, American Association of Higher Education, Association of College and Research Libraries, California Academic Research Libraries, California Library Association, California School Library Association, Association of Christian Librarians
- COMMUNITY** Rotary Club the City of Azusa (Founding Member, Past International Director & Vice President), 59th Assembly District of the Republican Party of California (5 terms & Chair), Glendora Historical Society, Glendora Republican Club (President 10 years), Sons of the Revolution, Society of California (Senior Vice President), Azusa Historical Society (Life-time Member), Glendora Historical Society
- INSTITUTIONAL CABINETS/ COMMITTEES/ COUNCILS/** President's Council, President's Cabinet, Academic Cabinet, Computer Needs Committee, Search Committees- Provost; (Chair)- Dean of School of Education & Behavioral Studies; (Chair)- Dean of the School of Nursing; (Chair)- Dean of the School of Theology; (Chair)- Dean of the School of Education, (Chair) Faculty Senate, Doctoral Studies Council, Masters Studies Council, Institutional Review Board, Library Committee, Library Task Force, International/Globalization Task Force, Research Council, Special Programs Policies and Procedures, Student Retention, Teaching and Learning Technology Roundtable (Chair), Technology Advisory Committee (Chair), Think Tank Task Force, University Technology Committee, University Advancement (Chair), University Information Management Committee, Copyright Task Force (Chair), University Copyright Committee
- ADDRESSES** Commencement Address, Undergraduate
Azusa Pacific University, Azusa, CA, December 13, 2002
- Commencement Address, Graduate
Azusa Pacific University, Azusa, CA, December 14, 2002
- 1999 Headmaster Executive Forum, January 4, 1999, "Information Technology", Mission Inn, Riverside, California, January 4, 1999
- International Conference on New Missions of Academic Libraries in the 21st Century, Beijing, China, October 25, 1998
- College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Luncheon Address, "The Times They Are a Changing," Azusa Pacific University, October 30, 1995
- Independent California Colleges and University Faculty Association (ICCUFA) Fall Conference Keynote, "Faculty and/or Technology," Biola University, October 6, 1995
- FAMILY** Wife, Rachel- Retired Special Education School Teacher; Son, John- Systems Analyst with Lockheed Martin, Longmount, CO, Four grandchildren. Daughter, Janel- International Teacher, Istanbul, Turkey Son, Robert- President, HDL, Baldwin, CA. Four grandchildren. Father deceased; Mother, Gladys Gray still living and in Ankeny, Iowa
- HOBBIES** Special Collections, Walking, Photography, Bass Fishing, Reading